eounmt®
MINUTES
BCC Public Workshop
Monday, July 17, 2023, @ 9:00 AM

Freeport BCC Board Room
Budget Workshop

COMMISSIONER ATTENDANCE

PRESENT: Chairman Danny Glidewell, Vice-Chairman Boots McCormick,

Commissioner Donna Johns, and Commissioner Tony Anderson

STAFF PRESENT: Quinn Robertson, County Administrator, and Melissa Thomason,

Chief Financial Officer

OPENING COMMENTS

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 9:06 a.m.

MELISSA THOMASON, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1.

Review of Recommended Budget

Ms. Thomason stated that the only item to be presented that will need direction will be
the FY 2024 Millage Rate. After today, the millage rate can be lowered but cannot be
raised once it has been submitted to the State. She said the FY 2024 Budget was
prepared based on a millage rate of 3.6363 mils and a North Walton Mosquito Control
District (NWMCD) millage of 0.441 mils. The NWMCD millage rate has decreased. She
said that the incorporated areas of the county have been included in the mosquito
control budget. Ms. Thomason said that if the board wished to give more direction or
obtain more information after this meeting, it can be brought back to the next few board
meetings.

Ms. Thomason reviewed the budget overview and reported on the preliminary tax roll
that has been released. It shows a 19% increase in assessed property values, but the
sales tax shows no changes. She talked about how the summer sales tax holidays will
affect the sales tax. She said that the local government half-cent sales tax distribution
received from the state is down 1.97% for the first eight months of FY 2023. She talked
about the staff's review of inflation, consumer sentiment, and interest rates which were
factors in producing the recommended budget. The county is in a very good position to
ride out a recession. Ms. Thomason said that there is $29 million in the Unassigned
General Fund Reserve which will help the board ride out any economic uncertainty.

Ms. Thomason reviewed the potential uses of growth funding, Constitutional Officer
requests, inflation, compensation benefits, commissioner priorities, department
requests, and infrastructure. She talked about the taxable changes that occurred
between 2003 and 2024 and discussed the FY 23 and 24 ad valorem revenue history.



Ms. Thomason presented the recommended total budget by departmental funds and
reported that a large portion of the increase in the General Fund is from the transfer of
employees into the Engineering and Environmental Services Departments from Public
Works. The Road and Bridge Fund was decreased due to the employee transfer. The
increase in the Landfill Fund is due to the additional funding for a new transfer station.
She said there is a 17.8% increase in the Sheriff's Fund. Ms. Thomason said that the
Sheriff has requested 66.8% of the Ad Valorem revenues for the current year and that
increased funding will be put toward capital funding projects and the radio system. This
corresponds with his requests in the past few years. She said that the Tourist
Development Fund is showing a large increase and spoke about how the amount is
affected by the Tourist Development Taxes and payroll accounting.

Ms. Thomason discussed the proposed distribution of Ad Valorem revenues: Sheriff's
Fund 66.8%, Constitutional Officers 12.6%, Court Support and State Mandates 2.3%,
General Fund 17.7%, and Road and Bridge Fund 0.5%.

Ms. Thomason reviewed the FY 2024 Draft Budget Assumptions which include
maintaining the county-wide millage of 3.6363 mil and a NWMCD millage of 0.441 mil,
a 4% Cost of Living Adjust (COLA) Increase in conjunction with the Evergreen
Compensation Study recommendation of a hybrid year adjustment for non-exempt
employees and class year parity for exempt employees, an increase in retiree health
insurance subsidy to match the increase in Florida Statute, $4 million for South Walton
stormwater and other infrastructure projects, an additional $2.5 million to the capital
projects budget for infrastructure for projects to be determined by the board, $16 million
for a new landfill transfer station, maintaining $100,000 for Coastal Dune Lake
monitoring and management and $100,000 for Choctawhatchee Bay initiatives,
$75,000 for capital improvements in the board budget, $750,000 for the District One
Medical Examiner's facility with the final contribution pending an agreement between
the District 1 counties, $250,000 to continue capital improvements of all park facilities,
$680,000 in the golf course budget to complete the maintenance building, and the $2
million in the Facilities Maintenance budget for 30 HVAC units and software for the
DeFuniak Springs Health Department.

Ms. Thomason presented the Constitutional Officers' requests. The Sheriff's budget
shows a 19.8% increase in the ad valorem, but other revenues did not increase and
therefore resulting in a lower percentage overall. She said that $1.85 million has been
requested for the Beach Safety Operations budget and will be on a reimbursement
basis from TDC. The Sheriff is also requesting beach safety funding up to the 10% cap
for FY 2024. The estimated TDT is approximately $54 million, the 10% would be
estimated at $5.4 million with $1.8 million for Code Enforcement, $1.85 million for Beach
Operations, and $1.7 million for the radio system. Chairman Glidewell asked if the
lifeguards were included in Beach Safety. Ms. Thomason said that it was not and that
it predated the statute.

Ms. Thomason continued speaking about the Constitutional Officers' budget requests.
She announced that the Tax Collector's budget is due on August 1. The collection
commission is based on a statutory formula. Their estimated budget surplus is $3.4
million which is the estimated amount that will be returned to the county at the end of

July 17, 2023 — Budget Workshop 2
Prepared by Kimberly Wilkins



the year. That whole amount is not budgeted in case those funds have to be used during
the year.

Ms. Thomason discussed the Statutory and Discretionary Contributions and stated that
the Health Department had requested a 40% increase to accommodate their expanded
services. Staff is recommending a 10% increase for FY 2024. She said that the
Facilities Maintenance budget has approximately $2 million budgeted for the Health
Department HVAC units. If services were not expanded on the board side, it was not
expanded in other areas. Ms. Holly Holt, DOH-Health Officer explained the reasons for
the requested 40% budget increase which include salaries for expanded services, the
Coastal Branch remodeling project, and the Mossy Head facility. She talked about the
agency's diligence in obtaining grant funding. Commissioner Johns asked if the grants
could be layered. Ms. Holt said layering would be considered if accommodating grants
were found; so far, no such grants have been located.

Ms. Thomason reported the Economic Development Alliance (EDA) has requested an
85.6% increase ($226,440) in overall funding for additional staff, a vehicle, business
recruitment, and a Board of Directors discretionary spending budget. She said that the
staff is recommending a 25% increase in the budget ($64,638). She said that the goal
was to reduce the EDA's dependence on county funding over time. Commissioner
Johns discussed the need for private sector investments into the EDA to lessen the
reliance on county funding. Mr. Uriah Matthews, EDA Executive Director, talked about
their current position in seeking competitive levels of funding and compared the EDAs
in surrounding counties to Walton County. Commissioner Johns asked if the EDA was
separate from the county. Mr. Matthews spoke about the interlocal agreement between
the county, municipalities, and the EDA. Commissioner Johns asked if any potential
projects were being considered. Mr. Matthews spoke about the growth at the Woodlawn
Industrial Park and the effects it will have on the surrounding area. A brief discussion
was held on past EDA budget increases, ownership of the Woodlawn Industrial Park,
additional EDA staff, and the benefits of the EDA for county growth. Mr. Matthews
compared the manufacturing metrics of surrounding counties to Walton County. He
reported that the remainder of the Woodlawn Industrial Park and Mossy Head Industrial
Park are soon to be sold. Commissioner Johns asked if the EDA would receive a portion
of that sale of the Woodlawn Industrial Park. Chairman Glidewell said that the EDA
would receive approximately 20% of the sale. A discussion was held on the amount the
EDA would receive after mortgage pay-off and project expenses.

Ms. Thomason continued speaking about the statutory and discretionary contributions
and presented the Board of County Commissioners' department requests. She stated
that Commissioner Johns had requested an additional aide earlier in her term and was
told to wait until the budget process. She is requesting an additional FTE for her office
for FY 2024. Commissioner Johns discussed her need for an additional staff member.
Chairman Glidewell and Commissioner Anderson spoke in opposition to having more
than one aide per district. A lengthy discussion followed on the proper protocol aides
must follow to address citizen concerns, aides addressing the concerns within the
district boundaries, the development of the District 4 office, and the District 3 aide
position.

The meeting briefly recessed at 10:07 a.m. and reconvened at 10:22 a.m.
Commissioner McCormick joined the meeting.
July 17, 2023 — Budget Workshop 3
Prepared by Kimberly Wilkins



Ms. Thomason continued speaking about the Board of County Commission funds and
said each commissioner will be given $25,000 in discretionary funding to be used on
projects or items in their districts. She talked about a change to the accounting of the
ad valorem tax during FY 2024. The Sheriff and Road and Bridge funds will be placed
in the General Fund and the monies going to other funds will be recorded as transfers
out of the General Fund and transfers into the other accounts. She spoke about the
South Walton Infrastructure (TIF) Taxing Districts and how the funds are calculated.
Commissioner Johns asked if the allocated amount was to increase annually. Ms.
Thomason talked about the purpose of the TIF to take the incremental increase and set
a percentage aside at the discretion of the board. Commissioner Johns felt that more
than $4 million should be allocated for the South Walton infrastructure. Ms. Thomason
said there was an additional $2.5 million that could be transferred to the South Walton
infrastructure; anything over that would be cut from another area of the budget.
Chairman Glidewell asked how much that would leave for the rest of the county. Ms.
Thomason said it would leave nothing. She noted that the board could give direction
today or it can be done one project at a time. Further discussion was held on recent
rain events and how the past TIF funds benefited the infrastructure throughout the
county to prevent a worse situation than what occurred over the weekend.

Ms. Thomason stated that in 2018 the City of DeFuniak Springs adopted an ordinance
establishing the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA). She reported that state
statute requires the county to contribute the ad valorem revenues attributable to the
increase in value within the CRA boundaries. Chairman Glidewell asked if the county
was approached for input on the establishment of the agency. Ms. Thomason said that
she was not able to locate where county contributions to the CRA had been discussed
in a meeting. Commissioner Johns asked if the city received additional funds from the
county. Ms. Thomason replied that funding is provided through the ad valorem for roads
and bridges on county roads inside the city limits. The amount of the funding is
approximately $120,000. A brief discussion was held on including the additional funds
as part of the CRA funds and how the CRA funds would be used. Mr. Josh Ervin, CRA
director, talked about the creation of the CRA to address blighted and distressed
properties. The funds are used for the redevelopment plan. F.S. 163 establishes what
can be done through the establishment of the plan. He talked about the projects that
have been done during his tenure. Mr. Ervin identified in October 2022 that the monies
had not been collected since its establishment in 2018 and discussed how the amounts
are calculated based on the city's and county's millage rates. Discussion was held on
the county's required contribution and creation of the CRA without the county's
knowledge. Mr. Ervin clarified that the CRA was not a city department and operates
separately from the city. Commissioner Johns asked if there were restrictions on the
use of the funds. Mr. Ervin said there was and said that F.S. 163 requires that the
monies be used per the redevelopment plan.

Ms. Thomason discussed the County Administrator and Planning and Development
budgets. She talked about the three requested FTEs in the Planning Department.
Commissioner McCormick asked how many FTEs were still unfiled. Mr. Mac
Carpenter, Planning and Development Director responded that there were
approximately two positions currently vacant. The three additional positions are
separate from the senior planner position. He talked about the need for an additional
development order inspector, planning tech, and a development review coordinator.

July 17, 2023 — Budget Workshop 4
Prepared by Kimberly Wilkins



Ms. Thomason talked about the requests from the library, Emergency Management,
and the golf course. She requested to work with Mr. Shane Supple, Parks and
Recreation Director, and Mr. Alford regarding restaurant hours, staffing needs, and
menu prices at the golf course restaurant and to work with Mr. Supple on increasing
the course fees. Commissioner Johns recommended that county employee discounts
be eliminated at the restaurant. Chairman Glidewell asked why there was a decrease
in the park maintenance budget. Ms. Thomason said that this year's equipment
requests were lower than last year's. Commissioner Johns asked about the amount of
the financial loss at the golf course. Ms. Thomason said she would collect that
information and send it to all the commissioners.

Ms. Thomason announced that 14 FTEs from Public Works and three FTEs from
Planning and Development have been transferred to create a county Engineering
Department. She said that the increase in the Facilities Maintenance budget was due
to the 30 HVAC units and software for the DeFuniak Springs Health Department. Ms.
Thomason stated that three FTEs have been transferred from Public Works to develop
an Environmental Services Department.

Ms. Thomason briefly reviewed the minor changes in the Courts and OMB budgets.
She said that the County Attorney's budget was increased due to the board's direction
on the County Attorney's salary and the addition of a Public Records Technician. She
said the decrease in the Road and Bridge Fund was due to the transfer of positions
from Public Works and Planning to create the Engineering and Environmental Services
Departments. Ms. Thomason said that the increase to the Landfill budget was for the
new transfer station. She briefly reviewed the funding transferred into the Capital
Project Fund from the Landfill Fund for infrastructure projects and capital projects loan
payments.

Ms. Thomason requested additional direction from the board on the Tourist
Development Fund budget. She noted the projected decrease in South Walton TDT
revenues for FY 2024. She talked about the projected increase for the North Walton
TDT revenues due to the one-penny tax increase. She requested the board's direction
on the transit program for South Walton and discussed the $4 million cost to implement
a full program. She asked the board if they preferred to begin with a pilot program or a
full program. Commissioner McCormick spoke in support of a pilot program to see how
the program is received by the public. Mr. Brian Kellenberger, Director of Beach
Operations explained the program'’s circulation route and how it could potentially reduce
congestion on C.R. 30A. He talked about the improvements that would be needed to
provide bus stops along the route. Commissioner McCormick said that after hearing Mr.
Kellenberger's presentation he supported moving forward with full implementation of
the program. Commissioner Johns asked what types of vehicles would be used and
when the program could be started. Mr. Kellenberger talked about the different sizes of
vehicles that are being considered and said that the program would be ready for full
implementation in May 2024. Further discussion was held on the size of the parking
areas, finding ways to cut costs without cutting service, reassessing the South Walton
parking needs, determining the capacity of each beach access, and potential parking
facilities.

July 17, 2023 — Budget Workshop 5
Prepared by Kimberly Wilkins



Ms. Thomason reviewed the North Walton Mosquito Control (NWMCD) budget and
reported that there is a decrease in the millage rate. She talked about what would be
done with the increased revenue. All the municipalities are now included in the NWMCD
taxing district.

Ms. Thomason briefly reviewed the increase in the Building Department Fund due to
the new facility and the associated expenses for furniture and technology needs.

Ms. Thomason briefly reviewed the Revenue Summary and noted that the large
increase in the Budgeted from Reserves was due to the rollover from the Landfill Fund.

2, Request direction regarding the County-wide and North Walton Mosquito Control
millage rates

Ms. Thomason said that the recommended millage rate is 3.6363 for county-wide and
0.441 mils for North Walton Mosquito Control. Chairman Glidewell asked if the millage
rate could be reduced to 3.63. Ms. Thomason said that it would reduce the overall
budget by $300,000. She reminded the board that the millage rate decided upon today
could only be reduced and recommended leaving the millage rate the same and
reconsidering lowering the rate at the budget hearings.

Ms. Thomason asked to meet with Mr. Nathan Kervin, Human Resources Director, and
Mr. Quinn Robertson, County Administrator to bring back a recommendation to the
board to consider charging a small portion of the increase in the health insurance rates
back to the employees. She stated that the insurance will be increasing 14.1% this year
which will result in a $2 million increase county-wide. She said that the county could
consider paying 75% of the increase and passing the 25% to the employees. Chairman
Glidewell expressed concern about giving the employees a pay raise and then charging
them extra for insurance. Further discussion was held regarding potential solutions
such as self-insurance, advertising solicitation for insurance rates, and looking at
alternatives for next year.

OTHER PUBLIC COMMENTS

ADJOURN
There being no further items to discuss the meeting was adjourned at 11:10 a.m.

a e ot ec o o

Danny GIidewa’, Chairman

g -

Alex Alford, Clerk of Courts and County Comptroller

July 17, 2023 — Budget Workshop 6
Prepared by Kimberly Wilkins



